
                                                              CCIITTYY  OOFF  BBUURRLLIINNGGTTOONN  
         

   Administration Department 
                                                                                                      300 N. Pine Street, Burlington, WI, 53105 

                                                                                                           (262) 342-1161 – (262) 763-3474 fax 
         www.burlington-wi.gov 

 
Minutes 

City of Burlington Plan Commission 
September 12, 2017, 6:30 p.m. 

 
 

Mayor Jeannie Hefty called the Plan Commission meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Roll call: Alderman 
Tom Vos; Commissioners Art Gardner and John Ekes were present. Alderman Bob Grandi; 
Commissioners Andy Tully and Chad Redman were excused.  
  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Commissioner Ekes moved, and Alderman Vos seconded to approve the minutes of August 8, 2017.  
All were in favor and the motion carried.  
 

LETTERS & COMMUNICATIONS 
None 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS  
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Revocation Hearing for Conditional Use Permit No. 71261 with Motor Sports Auto Sales 
for property located at 1157 Milwaukee Avenue, which was tabled at the December 13, 
2016 meeting allowing six months to comply.  
 
 Mayor Hefty opened this item for discussion. 

 
 Attorney John Bjelajac explained this meeting is for a possible revocation of a Conditional 

Use Permit that was granted for 1157 Milwaukee Avenue on June 12, 2007 for auto sales and 
service business. The Plan Commission is to consider revoking the permit, since during the 
entire duration of 10 years this property has not been used as that.      

 
  Jeff Way, owner, stated he is trying to sell the property and has never operated as a business 

that it was intended for and does not want to be fined for storing vehicles on the property. Mr. 
Way stated he has had several prospective buyers and thinks if the Conditional Use is 
revoked, it would have a negative impact on the potential new buyer. Mr. Way explained 75 
vehicles have been removed from the lot, which are used for wholesale, junk or sold at 
auctions. Mr. Way stated he feels he is being singled-out, since other properties have vehicles 
sitting as well, such as Lynch.  

 
 Gregory Guidry, Building Inspector, explained that this has been going on for 10 years and 

Mr. Way agreed to the conditions back in December 13, 2016. The conditions were to either 
comply with the original Conditional Use by June 2017, which gave him an additional six 



Plan Commission Minutes – September 12, 2017 

Page 2 of 3 

months, or if the property was not sold by June 30th, 2017 he would apply for a new 
Conditional Use and Site Plan application. 

 
 Carina Walters, City Administrator, stated that Mr. Way is still not in compliance and does not 

see the desire in him to want to be in compliance since this has been occurring for 10 years. 
Ms. Walters stated the Commissioners should consider revoking the Conditional Use Permit, 
have Mr. Way remove all of the vehicles and let the new buyer come before the City with a 
Conditional Use request and start fresh.  

 
 Mr. Way asked why the vehicles parked on S. Pine Street and the old Lynch property were 

allowed to remain on the property. Ms. Walters stated that staff has been working on this ever 
since it was brought to their attention.  

 
 Alderman Vos commented that an extension of six months was granted to Mr. Way to allow 

him time to comply, and he has not. This non-compliance has been happening for 10 years. 
Alderman Vos stated by revoking the Conditional Use it will not be detrimental to the new 
buyer and then they can re-apply.  

 
  Mr. Way stated his Conditional Use was a joke from the beginning, only allowing 100 

parking spaces. Mr. Way explained that he does not want to do business here anymore and has 
no place to take the 150 cars. He further stated it is a big difference when you take a vehicle to 
a salvage yard as is instead of one that is fixed. Mr. Way would like to just sell the property. 
Alderman Vos asked Mr. Way what he thought was a reasonable time to remove all the 
vehicles. Ms. Walters suggested 60 days and Mr. Way stated he would need at least 120 days. 
Commissioner Ekes commented how Mr. Way feels he is being singled-out, that the 
Commissioners were only talking about Mr. Way’s property and that staff will address the 
other properties. Commissioner Ekes further stated the City has given Mr. Way plenty of time, 
but has not attempted to comply with his Conditional Use. Commissioner Gardner responded 
that Mr. Way has done nothing for improvements and has been using more than 120 days to 
comply already. 

 
 Attorney John Bjelajac recapped, since 2007 his Conditional Use requirements have not been 

met and cars continue to be parked in the back of the building. The Commission has an option 
to cancel and nullify the Conditional Use to a specific deadline. Mr. Way stated he has 
removed 10-15 vehicles off the lot.  

 
 Alderman Vos stated he would be acceptable to having the Conditional Use revoked and Mr. 

Way remove vehicles and cease all operations. Commissioner Gardner agreed with Alderman 
Vos and suggested allowing 6 months, and not to extend the timeframe in the future since Mr. 
Way always seems to have a reason as to why it is not completed. Attorney John Bjelajac 
stated if the vehicles have not been removed in the 6 months, it will be brought before the 
courts.  

 
 There were no further comments. 
 

Alderman Vos moved, and Commissioner Ekes seconded to revoke a Conditional Use granted June 12, 
2007 giving 6 months, until March 12, 2018, to remove all vehicles and cease operation. 
 



Plan Commission Minutes – September 12, 2017 

Page 3 of 3 

Roll call: Alderman Tom Vos; Commissioner John Ekes; Commissioner Art Gardner; and Mayor 
Jeannie Hefty. 
 
All were in favor and the motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
None 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Alderman Vos moved, and Commissioner Ekes seconded to adjourn the meeting at 7:12 p.m.   
 
All were in favor and the motion carried. 
 
 
Recording Secretary 
Kristine Anderson 
Administrative Assistant 
 


